
















































































































































































































































































Memorandum 
 
 

TO:  Members of the Genoa Charter Township Board 
 
FROM: Greg Tatara, Utility Director 
  Tesha Humphriss, Utility Engineer 
 
DATE: January 16, 2013 
 
RE: Response to Residential Correspondence Regarding Transporting Oak Pointe 

Flows to the Genoa-Oceola WWTP 
 
 
At the January 7, 2013 meeting of the Genoa Township Board, Mr. James Delcamp of 4881 
Clifford Road, presented a letter urging the Township Board to “Vote No” on a potential bond to 
consolidate wastewater treatment between the Oak Pointe and Genoa Oceola Systems.  Mr. 
Delcamp cited Hamburg Township and California as examples of communities where the 
banning of salt was an effective strategy.  The purpose of this correspondence is to update the 
Board on our careful evaluation and subsequent refutation of Mr. Delcamp’s suggested 
alternatives.  Additionally we want to reaffirm why the Genoa-Oceola option provides the best 
long term economical solution for the residents of Oak Pointe. Finally, we submit this 
correspondence to address questions the Board may have in advance of the February 18th, 2013 
meeting, during which we will request the Board’s approval of a design contract and a notice of 
intent to issue bonds.   
 
History 
 
In his correspondence, Mr. Delcamp states that Township Officials are both “anxious” and have 
“passion” to connect Oak Pointe to Genoa Oceola.  However, the consolidation of the Oak 
Pointe and Genoa Oceola wastewater plants in Genoa Township into a single pointe of discharge 
has been a goal since submittal of the Remedial Action Plan in 2005 for the Oak Pointe site.  In 
addition, the consolidation of all three of the Township’s wastewater treatment plants into one 
point of discharge has been a goal since the current Capital Improvement Plan was started in 
2008.  Consolidating wastewater systems, in addition to solving the sodium and chloride 
problem, saves money, reduces energy usage, reduces chemical usages, and improves efficiency 
of operation.  In 2008, a Feasibility Study on this consolidation was prepared and grant 
opportunities were sought with Senators Levin and Stabenow and also Congressman Mike 
Rogers.  Unfortunately, we were unable to obtain grants and the poor economy placed the project 
on hold.  However, this past year with the formation of the Citizen’s Advisory Committee and 
public meetings, we believe there is sufficient public support within the Oak Pointe Community 
to support this project. 
 
Additionally, it is important to note that staff spent a tremendous amount of time this past year in 
negotiations with the City of Brighton; in the hopes of identifying a lower cost alternative to the 
Genoa-Oceola Wastewater Treatment Plant.  Through this exercise, we were able to determine 
that the Genoa-Oceola option is the lowest cost alternative available for solving the continued 
sodium and chloride violations for the residents of Oak Pointe. 
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Inspection Program 
 
In his correspondence, Mr. Delcamp stated that Genoa Township should follow the success that 
Hamburg Township has achieved with an inspection program.  Mr. Delcamp infers that 
Hamburg Township has achieved compliance and that our cost of $75,000 annually for an 
inspection program is a “misstatement of the real cost.”   
 
Recently, we spoke directly with Mr. Tony Randazzo, DPW Director for Hamburg Township 
regarding their inspection program.  Mr. Randazzo confirmed each of our concerns with an 
inspection program.  First, Hamburg Township has an easier time testing and inspecting as the 
majority of their collection system is comprised of grinder pumps, allowing for exterior testing 
of homes.  For gravity connections, of which Oak Pointe is 75%, they have to have appointments 
with residents and sample their water internally.  As we have contended, a main goal of the 
Township is to not enter individual homes for inspections, and this is not preferred by residents.  
Secondly, Mr. Randazzo confirmed our assertion that an inspection program would require a full 
time position.  As Mr. Delcamp stated, they do hire a summer intern.  However, they also must 
hire a laboratory technician to analyze each sample collected.  As a result, these two positions, 
not including administrative assistance, constitute a full time employee dedicated to NaCl 
compliance.  Additionally, Hamburg Township invested $15,000 to purchase a sodium analyzer 
to reduce analytical cost.   For Genoa Township to submit 1,200 samples would cost $30,000 in 
analytical expense annually.  Finally, it should be noted that Mr. Randazzo confirmed that an 
inspection program is temporary in achieving compliance.  When Hamburg was performing 
inspections, they were able to bring sodium concentrations to a low of 151mg/L, which is still 
above the permitted concentration of 150 mg/L.  Since the summer inspections have concluded, 
their concentrations are once again around 200 mg/L, and therefore home inspections will occur 
again this summer.   
 
In conclusion, without constant, full time, and expensive inspections that are inconvenient and 
frustrating for residents, an inspection program is an ineffective compliance measure.    
       
Non-Salt Alternatives 
 
Mr. Delcamp stated in his letter that we did not evaluated non-salt alternatives.  However, we did 
look at non-salt options to softening water.  In addition to fully evaluating options to provide 
softened water to all Oak Pointe water customers, we also looked at other options.  The low cost 
electromagnetic water softeners do not actually remove the calcium and magnesium ions from 
the water.  The catalytic type, in theory, uses a process known as epitaxial crystallization to 
change calcium from a form that deposits scale (calcite) to a form that does not (aragonite). With 
electronic or magnetic systems, water’s calcium and magnesium ions are supposedly altered by 
passing through a magnetic field. Manufacturers of these types of water treatment systems offer 
subjective evidence of their effectiveness; however, traditional water hardness tests do not 
support their claims. 
 
In addition, the purchase of a drinking water system that removes chemicals either through ion 
exchange and carbon absorption or reverse osmosis (RO) technology, will cost a resident several 
thousands of dollars.  As an example of the expense to residents, we currently, we spend $1,200 
to install a single under the sink RO unit for the residents downstream of the Oak Pointe WWTP.  
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These systems require annual filter change out of $75 annually and only serve one sink.  
Therefore, this cost does not address whole house water usage, causing staining in sinks, damage 
to hot water tanks, and staining of laundry.  The cost for a whole house unit is substantially more 
expensive. 
 
Surface Water Viability 
  
A final concern brought by Mr. Delcamp was the potential regulation of salt discharge by the 
State.  In conversations with our regulators, there is no indication that this is being pursued by 
either the Environmental Protection Agency or Michigan Department of Environmental Quality. 
Additionally, the only potential regulation that could impact surface water is a Total Dissolved 
Solids limit. These limits would be in the neighborhood of 500mg/l, which would make future 
salt concentrations much greater than those permitted in groundwater.   
 
Cost of Maintaining the Oak Pointe Plant 
 
One of the major considerations not included in Mr. Delcamp’s letter is the cost to residents to 
upgrade and maintain the existing Oak Pointe plant should connection to Genoa-Oceola not 
occur.  Studies performed by our engineering consultants estimate that the current Oak Pointe 
WWTP would require $1.43 million in upgrades to bring the plant up to current operational 
standards.  This cost estimated at $22/qtr. per home, when added to the annual cost of 
inspections ($15/qtr.) and potassium chloride ($45/qtr.) totals $82/qtr. Therefore, keeping the 
Oak Pointe Plant on line would cost $22 per quarter more than the Genoa-Oceola option. 
 
Conclusion 
 
We appreciate Mr. Delcamp’s concern and evaluation of alternatives.  However, through our 
extensive evaluation and study over the past 7 years, we continue to fully recommend the Genoa-
Oceola Wastewater Consolidation as the best alternative for our residents to have a long term 
solution with less the least amount of disruption and at the overall lowest cost. 
 
We look forward to discussing this project in more detail on February 18, 2013.  If you have any 
questions in the interim, please feel free to contact us.   
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